
Meeting Minutes 

State College Borough Design Review Board 

June 21, 2016 

  
The State College Borough Design Review Board (DRB) met on Tuesday, June 21, 
2016 in the State College Borough Municipal Building, 243 South Allen Street in Room 
241. Chairman Rick Bryant called the meeting to order at 10:01 a.m. 

  
Members present  
 
Rick Bryant, Chairman; Richard Devon, Sandra Staub, and Bond Reinhardt.  
  
Others Present: 
 
Anne Messner, Planner/Zoning; Alan Sam, Arborist; Jenna, Planner; Sarah Smith, Staff 
Assistant; Chad Stafford, PennTerra Engineering, Inc.; Robert Khayat and other 
interested parties. 
 
Approval of Minutes  
 
Mr. Devon requested that the approval of minutes be deferred to the next meeting due 
to some technical difficulties with retrieving them online.  
 
Chair Report  
 
Chairman Bryant had nothing to report. 
  
Public Hour  
 
No one in the audience wished to discuss items not on the agenda.  

 
Sign  

 
Replacement Sign, Bagel Crust, 460 Westerly Parkway, CP3 Zoning District 
  
Ms. Messner requested that the Board review the replacement sign for comments 
and/or questions. 
 
Boards’ comments included: 

 Inquired if the bush in the picture was going to be trimmed down because it 
covered a good portion of the sign. (There was planned work for landscaping 
and updating some ADA accessibility concerns.)  

 Suggested enhancing the logo in some way.  

 Suggested adding the address to the sign. 
 
Mr. Reinhardt made a motion to approve the sign with the Board’s comments and Mr. 
Devon seconded the motion. The vote was unanimously in favor.  
 



 
Land Development Plan 
 
705 South Atherton Street, Penn Mobil Reconstruction and addition, Final Plan, CP-3 
Zoning District, PennTerra, Site Engineer, Lichty Engineering, Building Engineer  
 
Mr. Stafford’s highlights included: 

 Penn Mobil facility which burned down and the applicant had previously 
presented a Preliminary Plan to the Design Review Board and Planning 
Commission. The Final Plan took into account suggestions from the Arborist, 
the Zoning Officer and the Borough Engineer, but there were few changes to 
the original submission.  

 The building site will be approximately the same size with a second story 
added on.  

 The parking areas will be identified and will comply with parking requirements.  

 At the previous meeting, the Design Review Board had requested a change 
of the color scheme to a brighter color and away from a residential color 
palette. In addition, the Board had requested that the faux second floor 
balcony and canopy be removed. The Applicant had updated his plan to 
incorporate those requests.  

 The Borough Arborist had requested that the property owner try to recreate 
islands of plants. The property owner intended to keep two islands around the 
corner of the property, but was unable to create new ones along the road due 
to a number of problems.  

 
Boards’ comments included: 

 Inquired as to what the difference was between the dark areas and light areas 
on the plans. (The dark areas were where the pavement would need to be 
milled up, graded, and then repaved.)  

 Inquired about the plant islands along the road and if they would make it too 
difficult to get vehicles into the service bays. (Mr. Stafford explained that the 
depicted plant islands were added at the Arborists requests, but only the ones 
at the corner would be kept in the final renovations.) 

 Suggested a façade greenery system such as a vertical wall system. 
(Additional greenery was always in the plans for the property prior to the fire, 
but salt and snow at the corner made it difficult to maintain.) 

 Suggested making the property more eye catching to make it more noticeable 
so that drivers might better see the vehicles on Hamilton Avenue.  

 Inquired if there had been any consideration for requesting a traffic light at the 
intersection. (It had been requested previously due to the number of 
accidents, but it was denied by PennDOT due to a number of reasons.) 

 Inquired if the impervious space would be increased. (The impervious 
material would be slightly reduced to add a little additional green space.) 

 
Mr. Sam inquired about putting grass in all the way around the corner and Mr. Khayat 
stated that there was not enough space at the corner. 

 



Mr. Stafford stated that he had asked the Borough Engineer for a review of the 
stormwater and requested that Ms. Messner inquire about that review and have the 
Borough Engineer respond to them.  
 
Official Reports and Correspondence 

 
Borough Council (BC): Ms. Messner noted that there had been some feedback 
regarding the Corl Street Elementary School. BC discussed their thoughts and received 
public comments. Ms. Staub stated she thought that Corl Street Elementary School 
would be staying open. Ms. Messner noted that BC was going to draft a letter to the 
School Board to support keeping Corl Street Elementary School open.  
 
Next, Ms. Messner explained that the Planning Department gave an update to BC 
regarding the Homestead Investment Program. She stated that the Borough has 
acquired three properties with the Program. Of those three, one property was sold and 
two should be under contract soon. In addition, the Borough was negotiating to 
purchase an additional property. Ms. Messner stated that BC wanted an update on the 
costs associated with the Program, but Planning was unable to determine all of the 
costs since only one property had been all the way through the process. Ms. Messner 
noted that the potential candidate houses that had been looked at seemed to be mostly 
in the Highlands area.  
 
Mr. Devon inquired about building homes in the Borough with shipping containers. Ms. 
Messner stated that there were not many empty lots or buildable lots within the 
Borough, but the concept should not be prohibited provided a location could be found 
for such a home.  
 
Mr. Reinhardt inquired about the projects on West College Avenue and suggested that 
the Streetscape Improvements might encourage redevelopment in the area. Ms. 
Messner noted that the West College Avenue area had a very limited right of way for 
the Borough to include in the improvements. Ms. Staub inquired as to how closely the 
Borough was reviewing the Ferguson Township plans in that area. Ms. Messner 
explained that the Borough traditionally does not review plans in other townships. But 
had attended open houses and provided some initial feedback since the township 
requested it. 
 
Planning Commission (PC): Ms. Messner stated that the PC would be reviewing the 
Land Development Plans for Penn Mobil, the Penn State Agriculture Engineering 
Building, and the RISE.  
 
Ms. Messner inquired about availability for the July meetings. There was no quorum for 
July 5, so that meeting would be cancelled. There was a quorum for July 19, but Mr. 
Bryant was unable to attend. Ms. Messner requested that the members contact her as 
soon as possible if they found out they would not be able to attend on July 19. Ms. 
Staub reminded the Board that she would not be available from August 21 through 
January.  
 



Mr. Sam noted that the Borough would be holding a meeting in the Greentree 
Neighborhood to discuss the possible development of a skate park in Orchard Park with 
the design potentially in 2017 and the construction potentially in 2018.  
 
Mr. Sam also noted that he has been working on a potential Forest Restoration Plan in 
the Walnut Springs and Thompson Woods area. He stated that he would be meeting 
with neighborhood residents to discuss this effort as it would include many of the 
invasive plants that were in the area.  
 
Finally, Mr. Sam noted that there were several park signs that were going to be 
refurbished soon as they were getting old.  
 
Adjournment 
 
With no further business to discuss, this meeting was adjourned at 10:36 a.m. by a 
motion from Mr. Reinhardt. 
 
Respectfully submitted by, 
Sarah E. Smith, Staff Assistant 


